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          1  DEPARTMENT OF SANITATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Good afternoon,

          3  everybody. I am Councilman Stanley Michels, and this

          4  is the Council Committee on Environmental Protection

          5  on the Capital Budget, and we will be first hearing

          6  from the Department of Sanitation, and after that,

          7  the Department of Environmental Protection on the

          8  Capital Budget.

          9                 And I might say at the beginning, I

         10  received a telephone call from Commissioner Farrell,

         11  and I hope he is okay, but evidently he had to go to

         12  the doctor, he got something in his eye, and I hope

         13  he will be well. Please convey our good wishes to

         14  him.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: We

         16  will.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And tell him we

         18  would much rather him be here than in my district in

         19  Presbyterian Hospital. I assume that is where he

         20  went. The eye institute is in Presbyterian Hospital.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO: Up

         22  in that great place in Manhattan 12 up there.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Flattery will

         24  get you everywhere.

         25                 Please identify yourselves, and I
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          2  assume that you will be reading the Commissioner's

          3  statement?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          5  That's correct.

          6                 Good afternoon, Chairman Berman, and

          7  Chairman Michels, and members of the Environmental

          8  Protection and Finance Committees. I am Michael

          9  Carpinello, First Deputy Commissioner, with the

         10  Department of Sanitation. With me today is Jerry

         11  Della Corte, Deputy Commissioner of Support

         12  Operations; Martha Hirst, Deputy Commissioner of

         13  Solid Waste; and Steve Lawitts, Deputy Commissioner

         14  of Administration, as well as other key staff

         15  members, to answer your questions regarding the

         16  Department's Capital Program.

         17                 I welcome the opportunity to appear

         18  before you today to discuss the Department's Capital

         19  portion of the Executive Budget for Fiscal Year

         20  2000.

         21                 The capital Program funds essential

         22  departmental needs while working within our budget

         23  allocations. It funds compliance with mandated

         24  regulations, preservation of the environment,

         25  rehabilitation of existing infrastructure,
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          2  construction of replacement garage facilities and

          3  replacement of over age equipment required for

          4  recycling, collection, disposal and snow removal.

          5                 The Capital Program for the upcoming

          6  four years, FY 2000 through 2003 totals $1 billion

          7  of City funds.

          8                 In this budget, funding is provided

          9  for the infrastructure required to implement the

         10  Solid Waste Management Plan and to keep our marine

         11  transfer system in good condition.

         12                 Ninety-four million dollars has been

         13  allocated over the next four years to address these

         14  needs, including funds to construct the export

         15  facility for Staten Island waste and work at the

         16  Marine Transfer Stations.

         17                 At the Marine Transfer Stations the

         18  Department has been actively safeguarding its marine

         19  assets through the Marine Borer Protection Program.

         20                 Extensive work is ongoing at the

         21  Freshkills Landfill to protect the environment and

         22  prepare for the closure in 2001. Our leachate

         23  containment, collection and treatment system is

         24  handling one million gallons per day of leachate. We

         25  have a contract in place with the concessionaire for
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          2  beneficial use of gas from the landfill. While

          3  further work is being completed, our landfill

          4  gas/odor control system is flaring the gas.

          5                 To effectively perform day-to-day

          6  operations and respond to snow storms, the

          7  Department must have an adequate and reliable fleet

          8  of vehicles. It is the goal of this department,

          9  consistent with City policy, to replace over-age

         10  vehicles.

         11                 Over the next four years $405 million

         12  is budgeted for essential equipment, including

         13  equipment necessary to implement the recycling

         14  program.

         15                 In the year now ending, a contract

         16  was bid out and awarded for the purchase of 300

         17  rear-loading collection trucks which are the

         18  mainstay of our collection fleet. We also are

         19  continuing in our effort to expand our fleet of

         20  dual-bin collection trucks with the advertisement

         21  for bids for a contract for 100 dual-bin trucks.

         22                 Funding is provided for the

         23  construction of new garage facilities, as well as

         24  necessary funding for reconstruction of existing

         25  departmental facilities, and the enclosure of open
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          2  salt storage areas. A total of $520 million is

          3  divided in the four-year program for these needs.

          4                 We look forward to breaking ground in

          5  July on our garage annex for Queens District 7. Over

          6  the next four years, three major garage facilities

          7  are funded, as are five smaller garage facilities.

          8                 I believe that this capital program

          9  allows the Department to address its highest

         10  priority needs, while remaining within budget

         11  restrictions.

         12                 My staff and I will now be happy to

         13  answer your questions.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you,

         16  Commissioner.

         17                 Could you tell us about your Marine

         18  Borer Protection Program? You mentioned it, the cost

         19  of it, and what the program is.

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         21  Okay, a number of years ago we became aware of the

         22  marine borer problem as the water in the bay area

         23  began to get cleaner, marine borers began to come

         24  into the waterways and under the direction of Deputy

         25  Commissioner Hirst and Della Corte we were able to
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          2  not only detect the problem, but also to properly

          3  fund it.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Martha Hirst you

          5  are talking about?

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          7  Martha Hirst.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are now

          9  expanding your jurisdiction to marine borers?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         11  The problem was addressed a number of years ago, and

         12  we have already completed work on the 59th Street

         13  Marine Transfer Station, as well as 91st and 135th

         14  Street MTS. There is $27 million in the four-year

         15  capital plan, and $76 million in the ten-year plan

         16  to address this issue. And the North Shore Marine

         17  Transfer Station, which is in College Point, Queens,

         18  is scheduled for Fiscal Year 2000. The remaining

         19  marine transfer stations will be addressed over the

         20  next four and ten-year period.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: On what basis do

         22  you prioritize which Marine Transfer Stations to go?

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         24  It is done as an inspection. Inspection is made of

         25  all of the facilities and those in which are in the
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          2  greatest need of repair are the ones that get fixed

          3  first, and so we prioritize all seven active

          4  transfer stations.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And with respect

          6  to that, the ones you are doing deferred

          7  maintenance, deferred repairing, what are you doing

          8  to slow down the progress? Is there anything you can

          9  do temporarily to see that when you get to it there

         10  isn't more damage done?

         11                 I imagine they are all pretty much

         12  being attacked by marine borers.

         13                 Martha, explain it. You are in charge

         14  of that program, I want to hear all about it.

         15  Elucidate us.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: I don't

         17  think that is possible.

         18                 The borer program is designed to

         19  treat the stations with the most serious problems

         20  first, and those were primarily the Hudson River

         21  side MTSs, and therefore we did 59th Street and

         22  135th Street first.

         23                 The other MTSs will have to be done,

         24  but there are at varying degrees of concern. The

         25  Southwest Brooklyn MTS is the least problematic, for
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          2  example. It is not on one of the inland waterways

          3  and it doesn't have the borer problem that the

          4  others have.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Is that an

          6  indication that the water isn't as good as it should

          7  be?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: No, it is

          9  sometimes that, but it is also an indication of

         10  where the MTS is, and what waterway it is located.

         11  So, the Hudson River MTSs were the most infested,

         12  because it was the most significant change in the

         13  water.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The victim of

         15  our own success with the water treatment plant.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: The victim

         17  of our own success. It is a good problem to have to

         18  solve, in most respects.

         19                 And we do regular testing and we do

         20  soundings and we also assess the need to dredge

         21  there because we do our dredging program concurrent

         22  with the borer treatment, so that we can get down

         23  low enough below the mean waterline to be able to

         24  address the problems of wrapping the piles that have

         25  been infested.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Is there

          3  anything you can do on a temporary basis to inhibit

          4  the growth of the borers, the damage that they are

          5  doing?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: No, not

          7  really.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: In other words,

          9  until you actually do the program, you can't do

         10  anything about the others, so it is going to be

         11  further deterioration by the time you get to them?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Somewhat.

         13  But we were quite early in attacking the problem

         14  with respect to the New York Harbor area.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What exactly do

         16  you do?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: You

         18  actually wrap the piles and it is something that

         19  almost, for want of a better description, is like

         20  saran wrap, and in some places we have to replace

         21  the piles that have been so eaten through by the

         22  worms that they are really structurally unsound.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And you are able

         24  to see that prior to wrapping them the borer, like a

         25  termite, is not on the inside?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes,

          3  that's right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is like a

          5  water termite really.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: It is like

          7  a water termite.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It eats wood.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: It eats

         10  wood.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Was there some

         12  thought at putting different types of pilings down,

         13  plastic pilings or something to that effect?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Well, we

         15  did look at plastic piles, they are significantly

         16  more expensive than the wood piles that we use, and

         17  structurally, in terms of the MTSs and the need to

         18  be sure there is appropriate kind of give in those

         19  piles, that we have barges loading and unloading

         20  there, wood continues to be the best material.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Very good. Keep

         22  us aware of what is going on there. Do you think

         23  there is sufficient money in the budget to do that?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes, we

         25  do.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You don't think

          3  if we put more money in, that you would perhaps be

          4  able to go after more of the MTS's and do a better

          5  job?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: I don't

          7  think so.

          8                 There is an operational problem, we

          9  operate our MTS's. We also have to do the work at

         10  certain times of the year, because of the fish eggs

         11  and sort of the benthic life in the waterways, so we

         12  have a pretty ambitious program as it is.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: In other words,

         14  you have enough personnel and everything like that?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We have been

         17  joined by Council Member Fiala from Staten Island.

         18                 So that you are confident that we are

         19  on top of the issue.

         20                 Do you have to close down an MTS in

         21  order to do the work?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: We haven't

         23  had to so far. We have been able to operate one

         24  side, one slip at a time. We work and coordinate

         25  very closely with MTS operations.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Recently the

          3  City Council, our Committee, conducted an oversight

          4  hearing on the retrofitting of the existing

          5  City-owned Marine Transfer Stations.

          6                 According to the Department of

          7  Sanitation's feasibility report on MTS conversion

          8  and testimony actually also, the estimated cost to

          9  retrofit one MTS is $30 million. What amount of

         10  capital, and what fiscal years are included in the

         11  Executive Plan for retrofitting of the MTS's?

         12                 In fact, is there anything in the

         13  Capital Budget for retrofitting?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         15  There is nothing in the capital budget specifically

         16  earmarked for retrofitting. As you know, an RFEI was

         17  put out this week and once we get responses of that

         18  RFEI and evaluate them, if there is something there

         19  that is worthwhile pursuing, the appropriate

         20  modifications to the Capital Budget will be made and

         21  monies will be put in accordingly.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The same thing

         23  can be said for the Executive Budget, you don't have

         24  any monies for additional bonds or equipment or

         25  anything like that?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          3  No, there is no money in the budget for barges,

          4  simply because under our long-term plan, it is

          5  envisioned that the private contractor will purchase

          6  his own barges for the export.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And I am just

          8  going to get it for the record, the estimate of the

          9  retrofitting is about $30 million each? And tell us

         10  just for the record, I think you already testified

         11  to it, but it is not in this hearing, what is the

         12  cost of an EBUF?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         14  The approximate cost for each EBUF is $60 million.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Now, let me

         16  explore this with you.

         17                 If it is decided, and I am talking

         18  hypothetically right now, that somebody comes up

         19  with a plan which is doable, in your opinion and in

         20  our opinion, to do the retrofitting, which we can

         21  all agree will take less time than to build an EBUF,

         22  and it is going to work out, therefore we would not

         23  have to do the EBUFs, on that assumption we wouldn't

         24  have to do the EBUFs, I mean in New York City,

         25  rather than the EBUFs that may have to be done in
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          2  the unloading facilities, is there some thought of

          3  having a private entrepreneur, the people who are

          4  going to be doing the exporting of our waste, them

          5  pay for it?

          6                 Right now the EBUFs, as I understand

          7  it, are to be built by the Corporation winning the

          8  bids for export, correct?

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         10  That's correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The MTS's are

         12  owned by the City of New York.

         13                 How would you go about what you are

         14  thinking with respect to doing the retrofitting;

         15  would that be a cost that would be borne by New York

         16  City, or do you think that would be a cost to be

         17  borne by the corporation doing the exporting, and

         18  are they aware of this?

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         20  Quite honestly, that is a very difficult question to

         21  answer, because as you know, the facilities are

         22  ours, and whether or not a private vendor would be

         23  willing to spend that amount of money on our

         24  facility, is yet to be determined. So, I think at

         25  this point it is hard to answer that question,
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          2  whether it would be paid with City funds or with

          3  money from a private --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is not out of

          5  the question to give a long-term lease, for as long

          6  as they are doing the exporting of our garbage and

          7  say, look, you are doing this, it is your

          8  responsibility, and therefore we want you to do the

          9  infrastructure construction.

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         11  Assuming, and, again, it is an assumption, because

         12  we haven't got a response, but that is assuming for

         13  a moment that some company came up with a way that

         14  fit our needs for the throughput --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Going along with

         16  my hypothetical.

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         18  Right.

         19                 The way we would envision this

         20  happening would be that if we entered into a

         21  contract, it would be that they would operate the

         22  machinery at the facility, we would still own the

         23  facility and they would operate it, and as long as

         24  they lived up to the term and conditions of a

         25  contract with us, they would be allowed to continue
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          2  to operate, but for whatever reason they might fall

          3  by the wayside, or not be able to maintain the terms

          4  and conditions of a contract, then we would have the

          5  right in any contract to protect the City's interest

          6  to cancel the contract.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That being the

          8  case, it still doesn't go to the question as to who

          9  is doing the retrofitting, who is responding to the

         10  retrofitting. Can you envision a situation where it

         11  would be a long-term lease and therefore they would

         12  be operating, we would still own it obviously but we

         13  would require them to do the retrofitting and bear

         14  the cost of the retrofitting, which of course will

         15  be passed along to the people of the City of New

         16  York.

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         18  It very well could work out that way. I don't have

         19  an answer for you, but it can go either way that we

         20  would put the money up front and pay for it --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I just don't

         22  want that to be an argument against doing the

         23  retrofitting, if we come across this feasible plan.

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         25  Either way, if they put the money up they would
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          2  charge a higher tipping fee or something. If we put

          3  the money up I am sure it would be a lower tipping

          4  fee because we laid out the capital money for the

          5  rest --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It seems to me

          7  that would be a basis for negotiation.

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          9  Absolutely.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: See the whole

         11  purpose, again, is to reiterate why we are thinking

         12  of doing, not only is there a problem for the

         13  neighborhoods which will now be subject to the

         14  vissitudes of the EBUFs, but also it is cheaper, the

         15  30 million as opposed to 60 million, and would go

         16  on, I think if I remember the testimony, a year

         17  earlier, to get the EBUFs on a year earlier so we

         18  wouldn't have to put up with the problems of the

         19  interim plan in the meanwhile. That is the whole

         20  thought behind that.

         21                 Could we get a copy of the RFEI?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         23  Absolutely.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Then we can make

         25  it part of the record.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            20

          1  DEPARTMENT OF SANITATION

          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          3  Absolutely.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Or any other

          5  documents to get one out there with it, and we would

          6  appreciate it if you would share with us any of the

          7  responses when you receive them. We of course would

          8  look to you for your analysis of it, but it would be

          9  good to see what is coming in. And I am sure anybody

         10  responding may come to us. What is the secrecy of

         11  the response to an RFEI? It is not like an RFP.

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         13  Well, first of all there is no secrecy about it. I

         14  mean, there is going to be an equivalent of a

         15  pre-bid conference on May 24th where people who have

         16  picked up the RFEI will have an opportunity to come

         17  and question us about what our ideas are, and

         18  similar to what we do when we have a bid, or we have

         19  an RFP, we have what is called a pre-bid conference

         20  and people who are interested in submitting

         21  proposals are free to come to that conference and

         22  ask questions of us.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

         24                 Your budget now includes funding for

         25  compliance of the Freshkills consent order, which
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          2  governs your operation of Freshkills. It includes

          3  the funding of a final cover, a leachate treatment

          4  and control of the facilities, utilities and

          5  roadwork; what is the current status of your

          6  leachate project at Freshkills?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          8  Well, the project has been completed. Leachate is

          9  collected from the entire landfill, all four

         10  sections, and --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Leachate is a

         12  run-off?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         14  Leachate is when we get rainwater, as it percolates

         15  through the landfill picking up all of the

         16  contaminants that is part of the garbage in the

         17  landfill, and it settles at the bottom of a

         18  landfill, prior to a leachate system you put in

         19  place, it used to make its way into the waterways in

         20  the Arthur Kill and surrounding waterways.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And the reason

         22  for that being is this was not a lined landfill?

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         24  That's correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The landfills
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          2  today in most places are lined, and so this wouldn't

          3  happen.

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          5  Right. Freshkills opened up long before a lot of

          6  those rules were in effect.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well over 50

          8  years old.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         10  Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And it does not

         12  operate under a permit, it operates under the

         13  consent order.

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         15  Under the consent order, that's correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And if it went

         17  for a permit today, it would be denied.

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         19  Well, since the landfill is being closed now, there

         20  is no reason --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am talking

         22  about a landfill done like this would not have

         23  passed muster, because of the fact that it is not

         24  lined.

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:
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          2  Well, actually, we were, prior to the announcement

          3  of closing Freshkills back in May of '96, we were

          4  pursuing getting a permit for the operation of

          5  Freshkills Landfill and a lot of work had been done

          6  in submitting all of the required paperwork to New

          7  York State DEC.

          8                 Once there was the announcement of

          9  Freshkills closing, that was kind of moot and we

         10  continued on with a consent order.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, fine.

         12                 We also have Mr. Leffler here from

         13  Queens, and Mr. Sabini from Queens. As I said, we

         14  will be joined from time to time.

         15                 What progress is being made with the

         16  gas/odor controls at Freshkills?

         17                 ACTING DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  CARPINELLO: I am going to ask Martha to answer that

         19  question.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Try and give me

         21  an idea of what the cost of these things are.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Sure. We

         23  have made terrific progress this past year with a

         24  gas control system at Freshkills. We received a

         25  little over a year ago, a little less than a year
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          2  ago, excuse me, the permit from State DEC to enable

          3  us to erect flare stations at the landfill, which we

          4  have done, and there are currently three flare

          5  stations, two flares at each station, operating in

          6  the closed portions of the landfill. That is section

          7  28, section 34 and the northern end of Section 67,

          8  which is the section closest to Richmond Avenue and

          9  the Staten Island Mall.

         10                 So those flares are up, they are

         11  operating. We are going through an emissions testing

         12  right now. I was there yesterday, and in the next

         13  three weeks or so involve some of the emissions

         14  testing that is a protocol required under our permit

         15  with State DEC.

         16                 We also have a concession in place

         17  with a firm called GSF, which currently operates the

         18  plant in the fourth section of the landfill, section

         19  19, where we have been for years collecting landfill

         20  gas from about a 400-acre portion of the landfill.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And selling it?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: And

         23  selling it.

         24                 We have a concession agreement with

         25  GSF. They are still collecting that gas in that
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          2  plant. They are operating the collection system and

          3  the flares, and they are seeking a permit from DEC

          4  to expand that plant in order that ultimately all of

          5  the gas that we are now collecting and flaring, can

          6  be collected and processed through their expanded

          7  plant and sold as the current portion of the gas is

          8  sold.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Can you give me

         10  any dollars on this? Do you have a contract with

         11  them?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes, well,

         13  we have a concession agreement, and everybody wins

         14  in this agreement. The odors are under control, we

         15  receive a concession payment of a million dollars a

         16  year from the concessionaire, which will go up if

         17  more gas is collected and sold.

         18                 We also are receiving payment, they

         19  basically purchased the system from the City of New

         20  York so they pay us another two or so, two and a

         21  half million dollars a year over the next 20 years

         22  for payment of the purchase of the system.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are not

         24  losing money on this deal?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: We are not
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          2  losing money on this deal. They will make more money

          3  the sooner they get their permit in place and an

          4  expanded plant bill.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What funds, what

          6  is it going to cost the City in our capital budget

          7  for this?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Well, in

          9  the next several years I think we have $4 million

         10  for next year in the capital budget. We are still

         11  doing some work on the collection system which is to

         12  put in a watermain that was required by the Fire

         13  Department around the landfill for this system, and

         14  a transmission line that will ultimately take the

         15  gas from the flare pads and send it back to the

         16  collection plant, to the expanded collection plant

         17  that GSF is developing.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am going to

         19  suggest that we pay a visit perhaps in the fall to

         20  Freshkills.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: We would

         22  love to have you do that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You and I have

         24  been out there before together, and we still have

         25  some of the pictures that we took from over there,
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          2  and I would like to see -- are we going to see much

          3  of a change?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: I think

          5  you will see a significant change from the last time

          6  you were there, in my recollection. You will see --

          7  since you were there you will see the northern

          8  portion of 67 closed, you will see the completion of

          9  the leachate collection system, you will see the

         10  flare stations, you will see a real diminution in

         11  the volume of waste that is there, and that is

         12  discernible, the active face in the landfill is

         13  really quite small as compared to when you were last

         14  there. There are a lot of significant changes and

         15  environmental monitoring improvements.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I think I would

         17  like to take a trip there, together, to see how the

         18  Vesey Plant (phonetic) is operating, the paper plant

         19  which is operating at the facility.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: This isn't

         21  the week to do that, but in the fall would be a good

         22  time to do that.

         23                 There was recently a fire at the

         24  Vesey Plant.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Really? Tell us
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          2  about it. What happened?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: There was

          4  a fire in their yard where they had stored many

          5  thousands of tons of bailed paper, and it all went

          6  up in flames.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Really?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: So they

          9  successfully put the fire out, obviously the Fire

         10  Department did a fantastic job because it was very

         11  dense paper and it took a long time and smoked for a

         12  long time, and in fact most of that residue is

         13  coming to the landfill for disposal and is no longer

         14  useful to the plant.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How many tons of

         16  paper, do you know?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: They

         18  estimate about 10,000.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Ten-thousand

         20  tons of paper, it didn't affect the plant itself

         21  though?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: No, it

         23  didn't. And no one was hurt.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Do you know what

         25  the cause of the fire was?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: No.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Under the

          4  Woodbridge Consent Order, you were required to build

          5  an enclosed unloader at the Freshkills Landfill to

          6  keep landfill, refuse and waste out of the water. It

          7  originally was supposed to be $38 million for

          8  construction of the unloader and was scheduled for

          9  Fiscal Year '95. Funding for this continues to be in

         10  the capital plan, I guess pursuant to the consent

         11  degree, consent order, and you were forced to use

         12  large hydraulic cranes to keep the stuff out of the

         13  water, the Department has received a temporary stay

         14  from building the enclosed unloader, but now you

         15  have to install a fence around the landfill to keep

         16  debris out of the water. The current plan includes

         17  $19.7 million for construction of the enclosed

         18  unloader, whereas we hope to receive a permanent

         19  stay from the court, arguing that the unloader is

         20  unnecessary due to the imminent closure of the

         21  landfill. So we have to make sure they believe us

         22  that we are closing the landfill.

         23                 What is the current status of this

         24  project, and what is the status of the temporary

         25  stay order?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          3  As you mentioned --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And how much are

          5  we going to have to spend this coming year if we get

          6  the stay?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          8  I will get to that information in a minute. But the

          9  $19.7 million that is kind of earmarked for the

         10  enclosed unloader is the requirement to show good

         11  faith that if need be we have money in the budget to

         12  build the unloader; however, we think that is not

         13  going to be necessary because under the consent

         14  order we are putting additional fencing in the

         15  southern section, sections 1 and 9, out in the

         16  waterway, to keep litter that might blow off

         17  landfill to go into the waterway, as well as a

         18  requirement contract to maintain existing fences to

         19  keep litter from going to the waterways, as well as

         20  having an independent expert who oversees the

         21  operation of our landfills and to make

         22  recommendations from time to time on how the

         23  unloading operation might be done better to minimize

         24  any litter that might blow into the waterways.

         25                 Let me just ask about the funding.
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          2  1.2 million for the fencing.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: For the fencing.

          4  Is there any other cost involved in having to avoid

          5  to build this unloader, or to buy this unloader?

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          7  Just the -- well, for the money in our OTPS budget

          8  to pay for the independent expert, as well as

          9  independent monitor that has been in place in the

         10  original Woodbridge lawsuit, and Woodbridge consent

         11  order when it was first enacted back in the

         12  mid-eighties, so we do pay for an independent

         13  monitor who oversees the unloading operation at

         14  Freshkills.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That doesn't

         16  come out of capital, does it?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         18  No, that comes out of the expense budget.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: A problem

         20  developing in the Hudson River was what to do with

         21  the Sanitation Department's garage complex at

         22  Gansevort Street and the West Side Highway.

         23  Recently, community and city officials reached a

         24  tentative agreement on moving garbage trucks and

         25  other items from the site to create more public
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          2  access to the waterfront.

          3                 Can you tell us about this agreement,

          4  and what kind of capital funds are in the Executive

          5  Budget for this project, and what is your timetable?

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          7  There is $53 million in the capital budget for this

          8  project. There have been conversations and a

          9  tentative agreement with the local community board

         10  and elected officials on the Gansevort Street site.

         11  We had originally wanted to house three garage

         12  locations there, Manhattan 1, 2 and 5.

         13                 Since then, in working with the

         14  community, we have been exploring other locations in

         15  Lower Manhattan, that if they prove successful we

         16  would vacate the Hudson River site at Gansevort

         17  Street and move to these locations.

         18                 However, we are still working with

         19  the local community boards and elected officials.

         20  There is a tentative agreement on a few of the

         21  sites, and we are just still in the process of

         22  identifying sites, but money is in the budget for

         23  this.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: All right, good.

         25                 You mentioned that you are purchasing
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          2  300 sanitation trucks, rear-loading collection

          3  trucks, and you are expanding your fleet of -- you

          4  have an additional 100 dual-bin trucks, are we

          5  supposed to be getting those all in Fiscal Year

          6  2000, and what is the cost?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          8  We are going to get -- the contract is in, it has

          9  been registered with the Comptroller for 300

         10  rear-loaders. There is money in our budget for 600

         11  trucks, and the contract for the dual-bin trucks, we

         12  will have a contract out on the street for 100

         13  dual-bin trucks, and I expect that by June 27th, we

         14  will get the bids back for the dual bin trucks, and

         15  then we will expand our current fleet, of which we

         16  have 60 dual-bin trucks, we have 100 new ones coming

         17  in and in total, though, of that 60 there is about

         18  30 that are over-age and have to be condemned, so

         19  will have a total fleet of 130.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

         21                 Now, I think I have asked this

         22  before, but I also want to get it on the record.

         23  These are all going to be diesel engines?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         25  All diesel engines.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Any attempt to

          3  try to look at another type of -- of if they are

          4  building any, trucks that are suitable to our

          5  specifications, do you use anything else but diesel?

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          7  I am going to ask Deputy Commissioner Della Corte to

          8  answer that.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELLA CORTE: We

         10  are always continuing -- as you know, we are in the

         11  forefront, we have 25 heavy duty CNG collection

         12  trucks in our fleet now.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What is your

         14  experience with them?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELLA CORTE:

         16  Well, as we have testified in the past, mechanically

         17  we don't have any problem with them, there is an

         18  operational fueling problem throughout the City, if

         19  we were going to expand the program. We are

         20  continually looking at that. We are probably going

         21  to be working with DOT on discussing some of their

         22  fueling stations. But currently the pieces coming in

         23  will be diesel.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Leffler.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Can you tell
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          2  us about your composting facilities, the function

          3  pursuant to the recycling law or pursuant to your

          4  recycling program, and where you stand with respect

          5  to site acquisition and capital funding?

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          7  I am going to ask Martha to handle that.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: We

          9  currently operate three composting sites,

         10  Councilman. One is at the Freshkills Landfill, in is

         11  in Canarsie Park in Brooklyn, and one is at Ferry

         12  Point Park in the Bronx.

         13                 Several years ago Commissioner Stern

         14  and Doherty, then Commissioner Doherty, signed a

         15  memorandum of understanding to try to work together

         16  to use Parks Department sites, that is sites in

         17  parks that were maybe in need of remediation in

         18  terms of their soils and foilage and vegetation, as

         19  sites for receiving leaves from our leaf collection

         20  program. And the leaves would turn into compose

         21  which would both remediate those sites and be

         22  available to other communities for use and other

         23  local parks, ballfields, window boxes, people's own

         24  yard gardens and so forth.

         25                 The first of those sites, the Park
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          2  sites, was Ferry Point Park. We set up a terrific

          3  site there and have a contractor who operates it,

          4  and leaves that are collected in the six-week period

          5  in the fall in Bronx County are taken into that site

          6  as well as Bronx County Christmas trees.

          7                 We may need to move from that site in

          8  the year or so, depending on whether or not a golf

          9  concession comes to that site, as has been

         10  identified.

         11                 We last year moved to Canarsie Park,

         12  again identified by the Parks Department in

         13  Brooklyn, as a site that could use remediation. This

         14  portion of the site was a former C&D dump-out site

         15  full of rubble and vegetation, so the Natural

         16  Resources Group at the Parks Department told us was

         17  all growing out of what was clearly construction

         18  debris, and that sort of vegetation. So, we cleared

         19  and prepared that site to receive leaves and

         20  collected Brooklyn leaves last fall for that site.

         21                 We are working right now, it is a

         22  timely question for you, because we are working

         23  right now to identify a site in Queens County. We

         24  would love to have your input and others from Queens

         25  input into sites that you believe would be available
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          2  for that purpose. It is as you know --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Right now you

          4  are planning, are you not, to expand you processing

          5  of yard waste during the year, so you need a place

          6  to do the composting.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: That's

          8  right. Yes, we do.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: What are your

         10  plans?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: We are

         12  working right now at identifying sites in Queens

         13  County. We have some sites that we are looking at

         14  with the Parks Department and we welcome input from

         15  other people as well. We are in the throws of doing

         16  that right now.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Your plan for

         18  collecting yard waste and composting it is six weeks

         19  in the fall?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: It is a

         21  continuation of the ongoing city program, which is a

         22  collection period of a six-week period in the fall

         23  for yard waste and brush and leaves, Halloween

         24  pumpkins, and then for a two-week period in January

         25  we collect Christmas trees.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: And in the

          3  spring and the season when there is a lot of yard

          4  waste, you don't feel -- what do you think about

          5  that?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: We don't

          7  collect yard waste at the curb in the spring. We do,

          8  however, have a program that landscapers are able to

          9  come to our sites in most of the districts in the

         10  City where yard waste is collected, especially

         11  separate from other material, landscapers are

         12  typically in use in those communities, and come have

         13  access to our sites and use them. I was at a

         14  professional site yesterday and there were three

         15  landscapers there, placing material at the site.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: I take it the

         17  problem, though, with respect to composting

         18  facilities is not so much funding but site

         19  selection.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Right. As

         21  with any other siting issue in the City of New York,

         22  that is the only problem.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: And it is

         24  primarily in Queens that you have this problem now?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Well, we
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          2  are about to go to Queens, the City's program is to

          3  collect leaves in Queens County in the fall, in 14

          4  districts in Queens, and that is the next borough in

          5  our schedule. We started in Staten Island, we moved

          6  to the Bronx, we moved to Brooklyn and now to Queens

          7  and that will complete the yard waste.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Let me see, I

          9  would like to be able to help you on this. If I can

         10  think of an appropriate site or a number of sites --

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Thank you,

         12  we would appreciate that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: I will get

         14  back to you on that.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Sabini.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you, Mr.

         18  Chair.

         19                 Good afternoon, Commissioner.

         20                 I asked the question at the Expense

         21  Budget hearing about the Expense needs regarding the

         22  graffiti pilot program, and as a follow-up I am

         23  wondering if you anticipate the purchase of any

         24  trucks.

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:
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          2  At the moment there is no money in our budget for

          3  additional anti-graffiti trucks, however, there are

          4  efforts to try to get some private funding from

          5  groups who are interested in this program to supply

          6  the funds, that we could have one vehicle for each

          7  geographical borough.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Or if somehow

          9  some other capital money were installed over the

         10  budget by some other means you might accept it?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         12  Absolutely.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: DOS is doing a

         14  coral, fluorocarbon removal program, commenced this

         15  spring I believe, regarding refrigerators, freezers,

         16  air conditioners, water coolers, dehumidifiers and

         17  other appliances, and you are picking those up and I

         18  am wondering what you are doing with them and what

         19  the capital needs are for this, if you are going to

         20  expand the program?

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         22  Okay, we started this program -- actually we started

         23  with a six-month pilot two years ago, and we moved

         24  the freeon, we had a private vendor come in and do

         25  two districts, and the Sanitation Department did two
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          2  districts, so we did four districts in all and we

          3  did a six-month pilot program so that we can compare

          4  our performance with a private vendor.

          5                 After that six-month program was

          6  over, we determined that we could be competitive in

          7  doing the work ourselves. We started in December of

          8  this year in the Borough of the Bronx and moved to

          9  Manhattan. We are now in Brooklyn and next month,

         10  June, actually June 24th we are going to start the

         11  entire Borough of Queens, as well as Staten Island

         12  and we move the freeon or the fluorocarbon from

         13  those appliances that you mentioned.

         14                 We purchased, I believe it was 22, 22

         15  vans that employees that are outfitted with all of

         16  the necessary equipment to extract the CFCs out of

         17  those appliances, so those vans I believe were

         18  purchased under the Expense Budget. I am sorry,

         19  those 22 vans were purchased under the capital

         20  budget, and the way the system works is people call

         21  for an appointment, tell us what the address is and

         22  what they are putting out, send our trained

         23  personnel around, they evacuate CFC, they put a tag

         24  on it, and those appliances, since they are made of

         25  metal, are picked up in our recycling trucks. The
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          2  normal recycling trucks that pick up everything else

          3  as they go down the block, now pick up these

          4  appliances once they are tagged and they go to our

          5  recycling vendor and become part of our recycling

          6  waste stream.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: You don't

          8  anticipate any new capital needs for that?

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         10  No.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Just as I did

         12  at the Expense hearing, I just want to reiterate at

         13  some point soon I would like to see a breakout on --

         14  because I know we are doing one next week, at the

         15  Public Siting Subcommittee, what the status is

         16  financially and leaf-wise of all of the sanitation

         17  garages in which we have done the least extenders

         18  for you, and you know, you presented us with lots of

         19  good charts at the beginning of the program, I would

         20  like to see where we are both financially and

         21  planning-wise today, or as of maybe the first of the

         22  Fiscal Year July 1, because you know we are doing

         23  Board 14 in Queens next week, the Amstel Boulevard

         24  site is on, and I believe there is also another

         25  sanitation facility site on the docket as well for
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          2  that day, so I see your real estate folks are here,

          3  and I just want to reiterate I would really like to

          4  see that within the next 60 days or so, if you can

          5  get that to us.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          8  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Do you have a

         10  separate capital budget for the recycling?

         11                 In other words, you divide your

         12  capital budget recycling and non-recycling?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         14  It is not really broken out that way but we do have

         15  $4.2 million in our capital budget for composting

         16  facilities.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is the only

         18  thing.

         19                 Okay. Now, do you have any plans for

         20  projects to build salt sheds? And if so, have any

         21  sites been selected?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         23  Yes, we do.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Have they been

         25  selected sites?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          3  We have one selected, there is 9.5 -- excuse me. We

          4  plan to spend $9.5 million for salt sheds over the

          5  next four-year plan with $5 million of that spent

          6  next year, or Fiscal Year 2000, and the first of

          7  these salt sheds will be up on 216th Street up in

          8  Manhattan 12.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Where on 216th?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         11  I believe it is in the back of the garage, between

         12  where the train now is.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Off Broadway?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         15  Off Broadway, that's correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Close to the

         17  Harlem River.

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         19  Right.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, does

         21  anyone else have any questions?

         22                 Once again, $30 million, of course

         23  retrofitting is based on the consultant's report;

         24  isn't that correct?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:
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          2  That's correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And probably the

          4  only way to obtain a more precise estimate of the

          5  cost for retrofitting is for you to do an RFP, and

          6  to get a formal proposal. I mean, I just want to

          7  stress how important it is to do that RFP, as I have

          8  requested, and I hope you come to a decision for

          9  doing that very soon.

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         11  I will take that back to Commissioner Farrell.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you.

         13                 And please send our good wishes for

         14  his speedy recovery. I hope there is nothing wrong

         15  with it in the first place, but if it is, I hope he

         16  recovers quickly.

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         18  I will.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         20  much. We are joined also by the distinguished

         21  Council lady from Brooklyn, Tracy Boyland.

         22                 Are there any questions?

         23                 Okay, thank you. We look forward to

         24  talking with you and working with you in the future.

         25  Thank you.
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          1  DEPARTMENT OF SANITATION

          2                 The hearing is over. Terminated.

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          4  Thank you.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 3:15 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 13th day of May 1999.
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